Extended research article

Clinical and cost-effectiveness of parenting intervention for mothers experiencing psychosocial stress: insights from the early closure of the Mellow Babies RCT

Lucy Thompson,^{1*} Jessica Tanner,¹ Matthew Breckons,² Naomi Young,¹ Laura Ternent,² Thenmalar Vadiveloo,³ Philip Wilson,¹ Danny Wight,⁴ Louise Marryat,⁵ Iain McGowan,⁶ Graeme MacLennan,³ Angus MacBeth,⁷ James McTaggart,⁸ Tim Allison⁹ and John Norrie¹⁰

Disclaimer: This report contains transcripts of interviews conducted in the course of the research, or similar, and contains language that may offend some readers.

Published December 2024 DOI: 10.3310/KCVL7125

Plain language summary

Clinical and cost-effectiveness of parenting intervention for mothers experiencing psychosocial stress: insights from the early closure of the Mellow Babies RCT

Public Health Research 2024; Vol. 12: No. 17

DOI: 10.3310/KCVL7125

NIHR Journals Library www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk

¹Institute of Applied Health Sciences, University of Aberdeen, Inverness, UK

²Population Health Sciences Institute, Newcastle University, Newcastle, UK

³Centre for Healthcare Randomised Trials (CHaRT), University of Aberdeen, Aberdeen, UK

⁴MRC Social and Public Health Sciences Unit, University of Glasgow, Glasgow, UK

⁵School of Health Sciences, University of Dundee, Dundee, UK

⁶School of Nursing and Midwifery, Queens University Belfast, Belfast, UK

⁷School of Health in Social Science, University of Edinburgh, Edinburgh, UK

⁸Highland Council Psychological Service, The Highland Council, Inverness, UK

⁹Public Health, NHS Highland, Inverness, UK

¹⁰Edinburgh Clinical Trials Unit, Usher Institute, University of Edinburgh, Edinburgh, UK

^{*}Corresponding author Lucy.Thompson@abdn.ac.uk

Plain language summary

Why did we do this trial?

There are links between mothers' mental well-being, parenting behaviours and childhood mental health. Childhood social, emotional and development problems are connected to long-term health problems and other types of adversity, such as poverty and crime. We wanted to examine whether a group-based parenting intervention, 'Mellow Babies', would improve mothers' mental well-being and children's development and whether it represented value for money.

What did we do?

We aimed to recruit 212 women to take part. Women were eligible if they had a baby aged 6–18 months, lived in the Highland Council area (Scotland) and had moderate to high anxiety and/ or depression symptoms. Half of the women were allocated randomly (like tossing a coin) to attend a 14-week Mellow Babies group alongside usual care, and the other half received usual care only (e.g. seeing their health visitor or attending a feeding clinic). Outcome data for mothers and babies were collected 8 months after recruitment and when babies were 30 months old. We interviewed mothers attending Mellow Babies groups and group facilitators. We had to pause recruitment for 20 months during the COVID-19 pandemic.

What did we find?

We were not able to recruit enough participants: 106 women took part. This means we could not compare the outcomes of mothers and babies who attended the Mellow Babies programme with those who did not or whether it was good value for money. Writing a letter to mothers was the most successful method of recruitment. Participants were generally more well-off than the local population (e.g. income, level of education) but they did experience significant mental ill health. A large proportion of participants stayed in the study until the final follow-up (75%). In interviews, participants highlighted barriers and facilitators of engagement with the intervention groups. Participants recruited before the pandemic were no different from those recruited afterwards.

What did this mean?

We cannot say definitively whether Mellow Babies is effective at improving mothers' mental well-being or children's developmental outcomes. A new larger trial is needed, building on The Mellow Babies Trial.

Public Health Research

ISSN 2050-439X (Online)

A list of Journals Library editors can be found on the NIHR Journals Library website

Public Health Research (PHR) was launched in 2013 and is indexed by Europe PMC, NCBI Bookshelf, DOAJ, INAHTA, Ulrichsweb™ (ProQuest LLC, Ann Arbor, MI, USA) and MEDLINE.

This journal is a member of and subscribes to the principles of the Committee on Publication Ethics (COPE) (www.publicationethics.org/).

Editorial contact: journals.library@nihr.ac.uk

The full PHR archive is freely available to view online at www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk/phr.

Criteria for inclusion in the Public Health Research journal

Manuscripts are published in *Public Health Research* (PHR) if (1) they have resulted from work for the PHR programme, and (2) they are of a sufficiently high scientific quality as assessed by the reviewers and editors.

Reviews in *Public Health Research* are termed 'systematic' when the account of the search appraisal and synthesis methods (to minimise biases and random errors) would, in theory, permit the replication of the review by others.

PHR programme

The Public Health Research (PHR) programme, part of the National Institute for Health and Care Research (NIHR), is the leading UK funder of public health research, evaluating public health interventions, providing new knowledge on the benefits, costs, acceptability and wider impacts of non-NHS interventions intended to improve the health of the public and reduce inequalities in health. The scope of the programme is multi-disciplinary and broad, covering a range of interventions that improve public health.

For more information about the PHR programme please visit the website: https://www.nihr.ac.uk/explore-nihr/funding-programmes/public-health-research.htm

This article

The research reported in this issue of the journal was funded by the PHR programme as award number 15/126/05. The contractual start date was in October 2018. The draft manuscript began editorial review in September 2023 and was accepted for publication in May 2024. The authors have been wholly responsible for all data collection, analysis and interpretation, and for writing up their work. The PHR editors and production house have tried to ensure the accuracy of the authors' manuscript and would like to thank the reviewers for their constructive comments on the draft document. However, they do not accept liability for damages or losses arising from material published in this article.

This article presents independent research funded by the National Institute for Health and Care Research (NIHR). The views and opinions expressed by authors in this publication are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect those of the NHS, the NIHR, the PHR programme or the Department of Health and Social Care. If there are verbatim quotations included in this publication the views and opinions expressed by the interviewees are those of the interviewees and do not necessarily reflect those of the authors, those of the NHS, the NIHR, the PHR programme or the Department of Health and Social Care.

This article was published based on current knowledge at the time and date of publication. NIHR is committed to being inclusive and will continually monitor best practice and guidance in relation to terminology and language to ensure that we remain relevant to our stakeholders.

Copyright © 2024 Thompson et al. This work was produced by Thompson et al. under the terms of a commissioning contract issued by the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care. This is an Open Access publication distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution CC BY 4.0 licence, which permits unrestricted use, distribution, reproduction and adaptation in any medium and for any purpose provided that it is properly attributed. See: https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/. For attribution the title, original author(s), the publication source – NIHR Journals Library, and the DOI of the publication must be cited.

Published by the NIHR Journals Library (www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk), produced by Newgen Digitalworks Pvt Ltd, Chennai, India (www.newgen.co).